

Preceptorship Insight Project

DATE: 02/04/2024

Document Control

Company: Chartered Society of Physiotherapy Date: 29/09/20 Author: JC / JSB Version: 2.3 Approved By: CSP Status: FINAL

Distribution: Suppliers

PROPIETARY RIGHTS NOTICE:

This document contains data considered Proprietary and Confidential by the Chartered Society of Physiotherapy. No part of this material may be reproduced or transmitted in any form or by any means, electronic, mechanical, or otherwise, including photocopying and recording or in connection with any information storage or retrieval system, without the permission in writing from the Chartered Society of Physiotherapy.

CHARTERED SOCIETY OF PHYSIOTHERAPY

CONTENTS

Contents

1	Introduction	3
1.1	Purpose of document	3
1.2	Background for the Preceptorship Insight Project tender	3
1.2.1	Project Aim:	5
1.2.2	Project Objectives	5
1.2.3	Project Outcome	5
1.3	Why this document is being issued?	6
1.4	Introduction to the CSP	6
2	Instructions for Completion	8
2.1	Overall selection timetable	8
2.2	Contact	8
2.3	Additional information	8
2.4	Responses	9
2.5	Clarification	10
2.6	Contractual Issues	10
2.7	Next steps	11
2.7.1	RFP Return	11
2.7.2	Presentations	11
2.7.3	Client References	11
2.7.4	Selection of Preferred Partner	11
3	Tender Proposal	11
4	Evaluation Criteria	12
4.1	Overall Approach to Business (45% weighting)	12
4.2	Services to CSP (20% weighting)	13
4.3	Stakeholder Experience and value for money (30% weighting)	13
4.4	Costs (5% weighting)	
4.5	Relevant Existing Provisions	13

1 Introduction

1.1 Purpose of document

This document is a Request for Proposal (RFP) to appoint a high-quality provider to support the Chartered Society of Physiotherapy (the CSP) in the delivery of the **Preceptorship Insight Project** aims and objectives.

The organisation intending to respond to this RFP is referred to throughout as the Partner.

This document is intended to provide the Partner with sufficient information to allow them to produce and deliver a formal proposal to the CSP.

The document is structured so that the Partner is provided with the following information:

- Background.
- Why this document is being issued.
- The process for review and selection.
- Detailed requirements (expectations of the proposal and evaluation criteria).

1.2 Background for the Preceptorship Insight Project tender

What is preceptorship?

Preceptorship is a period of structured support provided to healthcare professionals during key moments of career transition such as newly qualified graduates, internationally trained registrants and return to practice. Its purpose is to improve individuals' confidence as they move into new roles. Tailored support and development opportunities are packaged into 12-18mths programmes for a preceptee (individual accessing preceptorship) and preceptor (individual providing support to preceptee) to complete.

History

Preceptorship was introduced following the implementation of Project 2000, an outcome of a nursing and midwifery education review. Since then, the NMC have continued to mature their preceptorship guidance, with professional bodies such as RCOT, developing training resources for managers and newly qualified. In 2010, the Department of Health published best practice guidance outlining a Preceptorship Framework for Newly Registered Nurses, Midwives and AHPs.

Over the last 10 years there have been numerous discussions in England at region and AHP Faculty level, about AHPs following a more tailored preceptorship programme. Individual Trusts and ICBs have developed AHP programmes based on nursing and midwifery content and format, which have not necessarily met the needs of AHPs. In 2021 a review of published literature reporting on

preceptorship programs for allied health professionals in the UK confirmed that programmes were sporadic and variable in quality.

Outside of England, supporting the workforce to enter and transition is either an established process or one that is being developed. In Scotland, there has been a 'Flying Start' programme in place since 2006 and NHS Education for Scotland are currently reviewing their framework for nursing and midwifery to be adapted for use by AHPs. In Wales, work has commenced on a Multi professional preceptorship framework to align with the newly launched HCPC Preceptorship Principles.

In 2022 the NHS England National Allied Health Professionals Preceptorship and Foundation Support Programme, led by Amanda Weaver, was created to ensure that AHPs receive high quality preceptorship and foundation support as they transition into employment. This programme aimed to support staff over three phases of:

- Pre-preceptorship-students, international and RtP individuals, e.g Step to Work
- Preceptorship-period of structured support provided to health and care workers at key
 moments of career transition, such as entering the workforce for the first time, returning to
 work after a long period away, working in the UK for the first time, taking up a new role, or
 moving to a new organisation, to give them confidence to act as an autonomous
 practitioner.
- Foundation support-a matrix of opportunities for professional and personal development for AHPs, that supports upskilling across the 4 pillars of practice, while simultaneously supporting developing a diverse workforce fit for the future.

In 2023, the HCPC published their Principles for Preceptorship document to help registrants and the workplace/practice in embedding preceptorship. The NHS England National programme of work published their AHP Preceptorship Standards and Framework to empower new beginnings and build confidence for AHPs transitioning into new roles or workplaces. The development of their AHP Preceptorship Implementation Framework and associated AHP Toolkit provides extensive resources for individuals, services and organisations to support preceptorship implementation.

Relevance

Currently, the retention rates for HCPC registrants after 2 and 4 years is 97% and 93% respectively, meaning that 1 in 15 leaves after 4 years. Even though the physiotherapy profession is not the worst of the AHP group, interventions to support retention as identified in the LTWP are still important to allow sufficiently skilled staff to move into Band 6 roles.

Following the Covid-19 pandemic, newly qualified staff attributed their lack in clinical confidence to the shortage of in-person placements. Whilst soft intelligence from physiotherapy managers and service leads report that a proportion of newly qualified do not have enough experience and confidence to work as professionals straight from university. This evidence supports the need to have strong physiotherapy preceptorship programmes in place for newly qualified staff.

An NHS England national survey to collect baseline data of AHP Preceptorship implementation was released in May 2023 for a 4 week period. 172 organisations responded, including NHS, social care, private, independent and voluntary settings. Headlines included:

- 64% of organisations who responded were offering an inclusive preceptorship support offer for all their AHPs
- 57% were offering a muti-professional preceptorship programme.

Physiotherapy and OT were the AHP groups who responded with the most organisational responses for offering profession specific preceptorship programmes.

The physiotherapy profession clearly view preceptorship as a key feature to supporting workforce retention. With the development of new National guidance, the HCPC principles and emerging programmes/policy across other nations, it is now time to understand the implementation and impact of these programmes in physiotherapy. Exploring the challenges and benefits for all stakeholders (public and private), across 4 nations will allow for member resources to be created by the CSP and best practice to be showcased.

1.2.1 Project Aim:

To explore the implementation and impact of physiotherapy preceptorship programmes from an individual, service and organizational level.

To provide key recommendations for widespread implementation of preceptorship programmes.

An award of £40,000 if being offered to HEIs or independent consultants interested in exploring the preceptorship offering for physiotherapy. Duration of award July/August 2024-February 2025.

1.2.2 Project Objectives

- 1. To scope and establish key lines of enquiry for use at stakeholder events, e.g, awareness of national tools, HCPC, delivery of programmes, perceptions, challenges and benefits.
- 2. To scope and engage relevant stakeholder across the nations and in the independent sector, e.g managers, service leads, preceptees, preceptors, RtP, early careers and international registrants.
- 3. For early career stakeholders only, to work with the CSP membership recruitment team to understand how the CSP can support early career needs.
- 4. To scope and explore what impact means for this work and how it can be measured.
- 5. Based on the findings, develop recommendations to inform ongoing implementation of preceptorship within physiotherapy
- 6. To summarise all work into a project report and include case studies.
- 7. To support the CSP in dissemination of findings as determined by an agreed communication plan.

1.2.3 Project Outcome

To provide a written report including case studies that the CSP will use for future project planning and comms.

Chartered Society of Physiotherapy Preceptorship Insight Project - Request For Proposal

Link with CSP Strategic Aim and Workstream

Aim: A-Improve the health of communities through high quality physiotherapy

• Workstream: A1-Lead the transformation of physiotherapy.

Workstream: A2-Promote physiotherapy staffing levels that meet current and planned service

needs.

Aim: B- Enable members to achieve their full potential at work or when learning

• Workstream: B3-Support more chartered and associate members to fulfil their career

potential

Why this document is being issued?

The CSP are now looking to work with a Partner, who can conduct an insight piece with a wide range

of stakeholders, to deliver the aims and objectives of this work.

The CSP invites interested parties to submit an electronic written proposal.

Return via email to: tenders@csp.org.uk

Deadline: Tuesday 4th June 2024, 12.00pm (midday)

This document sets out requirements and asks Partners to outline how they can meet these

requirements, and to provide associated timescales and costs.

The RFP is intended to provide the Partner with sufficient information to allow them to produce and

deliver a formal written proposal that is acceptable to the CSP for the purposes of comparison and evaluation. Following the evaluation of responses, the CSP will select a shortlist of Partners to move

to the next stage in the process.

1.4 Introduction to the CSP

The CSP is the professional, educational and trade union body for the UK's 65,000 chartered

physiotherapists, physiotherapy students and support workers and our strategy for the next three years focuses on building a thriving physiotherapy community, championing physiotherapy,

maintaining an effective and sustainable organisation, and supporting members in their professional

and working lives.

Our mission and vision

The mission and vision set out what we are here to do as an organisation, and what we are aiming to

achieve as a profession.

Our mission for the CSP

Page 6 of 13

• To transform the health and wellbeing of individuals and communities by empowering our members and exerting our influence.

Our vision for physiotherapy

• To transform lives, maximise independence and empower populations.

Our strategic aims

- A. Build a thriving physiotherapy community.
- B. Champion physiotherapy
- C. Maintain an effective and sustainable organisation.
- D. Support members in their professional and working lives.

It is key that this work also aligns with the values of the CSP which are central drivers to the vision of the project overall. The CSP values are:

Learning

- o With curiosity and innovation
- o Through empowerment and collaboration
- o To drive adaptation and remain highly relevant

Courage

- To lead change and do things differently
- Through standing tall, embracing different perspectives and having difficult conversations

Integrity

- With a responsibility to drive high moral and professional standards
- To be accountable, respectful and deliver to our commitments as the professional and educational body for physiotherapy

• Inclusion

- Through embracing diversity in meaningful ways
- To ensure different opinions are heard, considered, voiced and -when neededamplified
- With respect to all people and communities

2 Instructions for Completion

2.1 Overall selection timetable

Key stages in the selection process are as follows. At all stages the CSP are seeking to reduce the number of Partners to reach a final preferred selection.

Issue RFP – (this document). This stage sets out the CSP's detailed requirements, and the responses will allow a detailed analysis of the Partner's suitability as a provider.

Return RFP - Responses are to be returned as per the instructions in section 2.4

Presentations - If selected to move to the next stage, the CSP will ask Partners to attend an interview with the project team. See section 2.7.2.

Selection of Preferred Partner: It is anticipated that a preferred Partner will be identified and informed by **Thursday 27**th **June 2024**, but the CSP reserve the right to change or amend this date if they need to for any reason.

2.2 Contact

All queries and responses to this RFP must be to both the following contacts:

Primary Contact Anita Watson-Programme Manager

watsona@csp.org.uk
Zoom Call: 02073066158

Secondary Contacts Hui Jie Chia or Kathryn Appleby-CSP Professional Advisors

chiah@csp.org.uk or applebyk@csp.org.uk
Zoom Call: 02073066680 or 02073066604

No other contact should be made to members of staff from the CSP without express permission from either the primary or secondary contact as above.

2.3 Additional information

Submissions received after the deadline will not be reviewed/accepted. Following shortlisting, successful applicants will be notified by **Monday 17**th **June 2024** and asked to attend a virtual interview via MS teams.

Interviews are expected to take place week commencing **Monday 24**th **June 2024.**We welcome and strongly encourage an informal conversation about the project. Please contact Anita Watson watsona@csp.org.uk

There will be a period for clarity questions and an online Q&A at **Thursday 9**th **May 2024, 10-11.30am** related to this tender and other tender opportunities for interested parties.

Click here to register for the webinar: Webinar Registration - Zoom

Please submit any questions to <u>watsona@csp.org.uk</u>. We will aim to respond to the questions to all who expressed interest in the tender by **Thursday 9th May 2024**.

2.4 Responses

As previously stated, providers wishing to be considered for this commission should submit an electronic written proposal to the CSP, answering the evaluation criteria descriptors in Section 4, along with the confidentiality agreement attached below in Appendix 1, to tenders@csp.org.uk.

Deadline: Tuesday 4th June 2024, 12.00pm (midday).

Please ensure the email is clearly marked **Preceptorship Insight Project** to ensure it is not opened prior to the Tender Submission Date.

Interviews are expected to take place in week commencing Monday 24th June 2024 (excluding Bank Holiday Monday).

Submission Timescale

Tender released	Monday 29 th April 2024	
Webinar Q&A	Thursday 9 th May 2024, 10-11am	
Respond to Q&A from interested parties	Thursday 9 th May 2024	
Deadline for tender submission	Tuesday 4th June 2024, 12.00pm (midday).	
Notification of successful shortlisting	Monday 17 th June 2024	
Interviews	W/C Monday 24 th June 2024	
Interview outcome	Thursday 27 th June 2024	
Contract duration	TBA (July/August 2024-Feb 2025)	

Written proposals must be returned at the latest by **Tuesday 4th June 2024, 12.00pm (midday) to tenders@csp.org.uk**

A copy should be sent via email to the primary contact watsona@csp.org.uk

The CSP reserves the right to request hard copies of proposals are sent to its London address.

Your document should include answers to all sections of the tender proposal (Section 3) and evaluation criteria (Section 4). Please respond with clear, concise, complete answers and ensure that all points are addressed. You should specify any assumptions you make when answering the questions. Any relevant schedules should be included as required.

A full breakdown of costs of providing services required should be provided.

2.5 Clarification

If clarification of any aspect of this document is required, queries should be directed to the contacts as set out in Section 2.2. Partners should be aware that the CSP reserves the right to circulate any such queries and answers to all prospective Partners on a Partner confidential basis.

Questions for clarification of process or requirements should be made in writing by email to the primary contact.

2.6 Contractual Issues

The successful Partner shall be deemed to be contractually bound to the responses to this RFP and any accompanying schedules and to have accepted all the provisions and the principles contained in this RFP. To the extent that any replies to this RFP derogate from the terms that potential Partners are required to accept under this RFP process then such derogations shall be considered in evaluating the applicable Partner's response.

The CSP reserves the right to suspend or abandon this procurement exercise at any time. The existence of this RFP does not indicate or imply an intention by the CSP to enter a contract with any Partner. The CSP shall have entire discretion regarding the decision to conduct a competitive exercise in relation to all or any of the subject matter in this document. In responding to this document each potential Partner shall accept that it shall bear the costs of responding to the document and engaging in the next phase of this procurement process.

All proposals must be valid for a period of no less than 120 days from the submission date.

No obligation to contract

The CSP is not obliged to accept any of the proposals it receives relating to this RFP.

The CSP may negotiate further with any or some of the Partners during the course of this process. In the event that a particular Partner is selected for further negotiation, and those subsequent negotiations result in the failure to reach full agreement, the CSP reserves the right to resume negotiations with other Partners who have submitted proposals.

The CSP may, upon receipt of any proposal, decide to contract for either the entire project or portions of it depending on the suggestions made and the budget available to the CSP.

All costs of preparing proposals in response to this RFP should be borne by the Partner and will not be reimbursed, regardless of whether the Partner is subsequently awarded any contract as a result of this process.

In recognition of this, the Partner will retain all IP rights in their proposal documents and the CSP will not reuse Partner documents for any other purpose, although noting that there are not any IP rights accrued in ideas, only their specific form as presented in Partner proposal documents.

2.7 Next steps

2.7.1 RFP Return

Any Partner wishing to offer a written proposal must ensure this is received by **Tuesday 4**th **June 2024, 12.00pm (midday)** to **tenders@csp.org.uk** as noted at section 2.4. Any proposals received past this cut-off date will not be considered, nor returned. We will confirm receipt electronically of the email RFP as soon as possible.

2.7.2 Presentations

If selected to move to the next stage, we will invite you to interview with the CSP project team. The interviews are to be held w/c **Monday 24**th **June 2024**. Interviews will last no more than 60 minutes in duration (including time for questions to the CSP panel).

Interviews will be held via MS teams and Partners will be sent an invite.

2.7.3 Client References

We will request details of up to 3 clients that the CSP can contact for references.

2.7.4 Selection of Preferred Partner

The CSP expects to select a preferred Partner by **Thursday 27th June 2024**, all responders will be notified of the decision as to whether they have been successful or not.

3 Tender Proposal

In submitting your tender, we are seeking a written submission (1,500-2,000 words) which will detail how you will deliver the contract to fulfil the evaluation criteria (detailed in Section 4). It will need to provide sufficient detail for us to understand how your proposal will work and specifically how you would achieve the stated research aims and objectives within this specification.

In addition, the submission should include the following supporting documents:

- 1. A page that includes an indication that the document constitutes a formal response to the CSP's invitation to tender to undertake the project: 'Preceptorship Insight Project' and the name(s) of the organisation submitting the tender.
- 2. The individual with whom all communication should be made regarding the progress of the tender's consideration, and the supply of their contact details.
- 3. Include a contents page, with the structure and sections of the document clearly specified and providing responses to the evaluation criteria, including the provision of any additional information as appendices (see point 6 below).
- 4. All pages to be numbered.
- 5. Tender documents should be titled including the name of your organisation/institution and submitted to tenders@csp.org.uk
- 6. Additional information can be provided as appendices, submitted in electronic form. Each appendix should be clearly labelled and referred to in the text/presentation of the main submission, so that the nature and purpose of the additional information is clear.
- 7. Specific appendices should be provided that provide the summary curricula vitae for each team member who would be materially involved in undertaking activity within the project.

Additional information can be provided in the form of digital links to other resources (for example, material that the tenderer has produced previously). Where provided, care should be taken to ensure the following:

- Permission has been secured to provide the link (where required).
- The link is operational.
- The purpose of supplying the additional information is clear.

Tender documents and supplementary appendices should be submitted in an electronic format and sent to tenders@csp.org.uk by the Tuesday 4th June 2024, 12.00pm (midday).

4 Evaluation Criteria

The contract will be awarded to the contractor that is best able to meet the CSP's needs and aims as defined in this document and can demonstrate that their proposal is best value. The evaluation criteria also align with the CSP values. Failure to provide all or part of the information may result in your submission being excluded from the evaluation process. Please provide details on the following criteria:

NOTE: All information received must be relevant to this procurement and concise. Excessive corporate information that is not tailored to the specifics of this procurement and tailored to describing how your bid meets our needs will be disregarded.

4.1 Overall Approach to Business (45% weighting)

Let us understand more about your ways of working:

- 1. Please explain why you would like to work with the CSP and why your organisation will be a good fit for this procurement.
- 2. Please describe your overall approach of how you would deliver the project.
- 3. What are your organisational values and how do you ensure these are reflected in how you do your work?
- 4. How does your organisational culture fit with CSP values?
- 5. What is your understanding of the project brief and objectives of this work in relation to the tender.
- 6. What would be your methodological approach to addressing the research brief?
- 7. Please outline your proposed project design with detail of methods and methodology, in line with the tender specification, objectives and deliverables to address the project brief and considering the needs of the CSP and the intended professional audience
- 8. Please outline your intended plans to meet the objectives and outputs of the project.
- 9. Outline how you have considered equality, diversity and belonging within your processes and planning.
- 10. Please describe how you will implement sustainable working practices.

4.2 Services to CSP (20% weighting)

Tell us more about what you can offer us:

- 1. Please explain your proposed processes for reporting project progress and data to the CSP.
- 2. How will you work with the CSP Project Team to ensure the project meets the objectives set?
- 3. How will you ensure delivery of project outcomes within the defined timescale?

4.3 Stakeholder Experience and value for money (30% weighting)

Tell us how you support high quality service and engage with the CSP.

- 1. How will you document/measure stakeholder engagement as part of projects like this? Include consideration of data protection measures.
- 2. How will your team ensure inclusive stakeholder engagement is of a high level?
- 3. What is your preferred communication strategy to ensure optimal working relationships between the CSP and yourselves (e.g, how often do you believe we need to meet? How would you respond to business-as-usual requests from the Team?)
- 4. Please describe your previous experience of successful project completion and evidence that objectives were met.
- 5. Please outline relevant experience and expertise (content, technical and contextual) of the project team aligned with this project brief.

4.4 Costs (5% weighting)

Tell us about how you cost your services:

1. Please provide details of your costs and how they are calculated (include details of any wider team delivery and/or additional cost).

4.5 Relevant Existing Provisions

1. Please provide details of up to 3 clients that the CSP can contact for references.